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A NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the THIRTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF /S TP INDIA
LIMVITED will be held at its Registered Office at Plot No, 1-61, Addltlonal MIDC Area, Murbad, District
Thana on saturday, the 17" day of September, 2016 gt 11.30 pm to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt Andited Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss account of the Company
tor the flnancial year ended 317 March, 2016 and Balance Sheet as at that date together with
the Reports of Auditors’ snd Directors’ thereon;

2. Toconslder declaration of Dividend;

3. To appaint a Director in place of Shri Akshay D. Bhatt, who retiras by rotation and is etiglbie for
re-appointment; '

4. Tore-appoint Auditors and fix thelr remuneration and in this regards, to consider and if thought

it, to pass the {following resoluticn as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION :
#RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed there under, as amended form fime to time,
M/s B. R. Dalal & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mumbai { Firm Reglstration no. W102024), be and
is hereby appointed as Auditor of the Company 10 held office from concluston of this Annual
General Meeting till the conclusion of the 37% Annual General Meeting (Subject ta ratification of
their appointment at every annual General Meeting) at such remuneration as may be mutually
agreed batween the Roard of Directors of the Company and the Auditors®

By Order of the poard of DirectoTs

sdf-
~ Place: Mumbal Sharat C. Parekh
Date ; 5% August, 2016 ' Managing Director
DIN ; 02650644
Repistered Office:
; Plot No. J-61, Additlonal MIDC Area d
wurbad, District Thane

NOTICE

1. AMEMBER ENTITLED TD ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 15 ENTITLED
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY NEED
NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY,

4. The instrument appointing proxy ust be depostted at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than 48 hours wetore the time fixed for holding the Meeting.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifth and helding in the
apgregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint 2 single person as proxy and such person shall not act 25 4
proxy for any other person ar shareholder. .

4, Corporate members jntending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeling
are requested to send 10 the Company a certified copy of the Board Resclution authorlzing thelr
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from
Meanday, 12" septerber, 2016 to Saturday, 17" September, 2016 {both days inciusive).



B.

10.

11.

]2,

13.

14.

15.

16.

Members who have multiple folios with identical order of names are requested to intimate 1o
the Company those fellas to enable the Company to consolidate ali shareholding into ene folio.
Members having any querylies) relating to this Annual Report are requested to send their
questions to Registered Office of the Company at feast 7 days before the date scheduled for
Annual General Mesating.
Members who hoid shares in physical form are requested to Intimate to the Company Bank
mandate under the sipnature of & Sole/first named joint sharcholder specifying Bank's name,
Name and Address (with PIN No, ) of the Branch, Account Type — Saving {SA) or Current {CA )
Account No.

in case of physical transfer or transmission of shares, copy of PAN Card of the transferee is
mandatory,

investors holding shares in physical form are advisad to opt for Electronic Clearing System {ECS)
to avail fast and safe remittance of dividend. A photacopy of a leaf of your Cheque book bearing
your Account Number may also be sent along with mandate.

Members are requested to notify promptly changes in their address quoting their Registered
Folio Nos. to the Company or its RTA.

Members are requested to notify promptly changes in their address quoting their physical
holding in the Company to avail the facility of dematerialization.

Members / Proxies are requested to bring attendance slip duly filled along with their copies of
Annual Report in the meeting.

Al material documents are open for Inspection by the members on all working days at the
Registered Office of the Company till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India vide Circular No. 17/2011 dated 21% April,
2011 and Circular No. 18/2011 dated 29 April, 2013, allowed service of documents by e-mode
as a Green initiative In the Corparate Governance. The Members are requested tc register their
e-mail address the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent — Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd
having it office at EfZ, Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki Vihar Road, Sakl Naka, Andheri {East}, Mumbai
400072

In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration} Rules, 2014 as substituted by the Companies
{Management and administration) Rule 2015 and Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulation, the
Company is pleased to provide members the facility to exercise their right to vote at Thirty
Fourth Annual General Meeting by electronic means and the business may be transacted
through e-voting services provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The
Company has entered into an arrangement with Central Depository Services (India ) Limited for
facilitating e-voting for Annual General Meeting.

The E-voting period for ail items of business contalned in this Notlce shall commence from
Wednesday, 14" September 2016 (10.00 am IST) and wil! end on Friday, 16™ September, 2016,
2016 (5.00 pm I5T}. During this periad Equity Shareholders of the Campany holding shares either
in physical form or in demateriajized form as on Saturday, 10" september, 2016 (ie cut-off
date), may cast their vote electronicaily.

The Company has appointed an independent Professional [Practicing Company Secretary — M/s
Girish Murarka & Co.) as Scrutinlzer to cenduct E-voting in 2 fair and transparent manner. The
Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conciusian of voting at General Meeting would count the
votes cast at the meeting, thereafter and make, not iater than three days of conclusion of the



meeting , the Consolldated Scrutinizer's Report of the total vote cast in favour or against, If any,
te the Chairman or person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the same.

The Results along with Scrutinizer’s Report shall be communicated to the Stock Exchange.

The instructlons for members for voting elactronically are as under:-

In case of members recelving e-mail:

()
{ii)
(i}
(v)

0
(v}

(vii)

Log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com

Click on “Shareholders” tab.
Now, select the *COMPANY NAME" from the drop down menu and click on "SUBMIT"
New Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL; & Character DP |D followed by & Digits Client 1D,

¢. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Foiic Number registered
with the Company.

Next anter the Imaga Verification as displayed and Click on Legin.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had fogged on to www.evatingindia.com and
voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your axisting password is to be used.
if you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares ln Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by income Tax Department
{Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
¢+ Members who havwe not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the first two
latters of their name and the 8 digits of the seguence number (refer
serial no. printed on the nams and address sticker/Postal Ballot
Form/mail) in the PAN field.

DoB

Enter the Date of Birth as recordsd in your demat account or in the company
records in order to login

Dividend | Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the

Bank company recerds in order to login.

Details « If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company ,
please snter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details
field.

(vili)  After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT" tab.

(ix)

Members holding shares In physical form will then reach directly the Company selaction
screen. However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation’ menu whersin they are required to mandatotily enter their login password in
the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also uged by the demat



(x)

(xi}

(i}

{xiii)

(xiv)

{xv)

oovi)

{xvii)

[eviii)

holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote,
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It Is strongly
recommended not to shara your password with any other person and take utmost care
to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting
on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on tha EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you witl see “RESCLUTION DESCRIFTION® and against the same
the option *“YES/MNQ" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES
impliea that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the
Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK™ if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

Aftar selacting the rasolution you have decided to vete on, click on “SUBMIT". A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vate, click on “OK", else to
change your vota, ¢lick on “CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

Onea you “*CONFIRM™ your vote on the resalution, you will not be allowed to mogify your
vote.

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print”
option on the Voting page.

i Demat aceount holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the User ID and
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password& enter the details as prompted

by the system.

Note on Non-individual Shareholders and custodians

Non-individual sharehelders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to
log on to hitps://www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

Thay should submit a scanned copy of the Registration Forrm bearing the stamp and
sign of the entity to helpdesk evotinai@edslindia.com.

After recelving the login details they have to create a user who would be able to link the
account{s) which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.



= They should upload a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney
{POA)which they have issued in favour of the Custodian ,if any, in PDF format in the
gystem for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

xiv)  Incase you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions ("FAQs") and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.comunder

help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@edslindia.com.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For TPI indla Limited
Sdf-
Bharat C. Parekh
Managing Director
DIN : 02650644
Place; Mumbai
Date : 5" August, 2016
a) Name of Directaor : Akshay D. Bhatt
b} Director Identification No. : 00537101
¢] Date of Birth : 16" September, 1954
d) Date of Appointment : 31% July, 2606
e] Qualification : B.Com {Hon), LLB and FCA
fl Directorship Held In other Companies : il

g} Membership / Chairmanship of Auditand  : Nil
Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee
Across Pubtlic Companies

h) No. of Shares Held : Nil



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Ta,
The Members
TPFI INIMA LIMITED

Your Directors are pleased to present thie Thirty Fourth Annual Report and the company’s

audited financial statements for the year ended 31% March, 20186.

FINANCIAL RESULTS: Rs. In Lags
Year Year
Ended Ended
31.03.2016 | 31.03.2015
Total Income 3523.94 319108
Total Expenditure 3239.68 2833.20
Profit / (Loss) before Interest, Depreciation, 28426 357.88
Amortization, Exceptional item
Less : Interest 365.93 268.82
Depreciation 63.584 60.64
Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional item & tax {145.51) 28.42
Add : Exceptional items Nil Nil
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax {145.51) 28.42
Less: Provisions for Taxation Nil Nil
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (145.51) 28.42
OPERATION REVIEW:

The financial year 2015-16 has been marked by excitement and its share of challenges. The
- decisive political mandate set the stage for surging hopes for a rapid economic turnaround of
Indian economy. On the macro frons, the biggest comfort came from the sharp drop in the crude
prices. For the Large net importers like India, the decline in crude price has helped in controlling
the trade deficit and easing inflation. While economic indicators point towards improvement, the
recovery on the ground has been rather slow. Lower inflation has not resulted in significant
improvement in Demand Condition. The Demand conditions have been quite challenging across

sector as borne out by slow improvement.

In spite of the above back drop, the Demand for your product during the year 2015-16 was

moderate:

a} The total income of Rs. 3523.94 lacs during the year against Rs. 3191.08lacs during the

previous year.




b) Though the Total Income during the year under review increased by 10.43%, but The
Operational Profit before interest and depreciation for the year under review is Rs. 284.26
lacs as against Rs, 357.88 lacs during the previous year. Due to low capacity utilization
for want of Additional Working Capital coupled with high cost of borrowing and
fluctuating crude prices, led 1o a loss of Rs. 145.51 Lac (includes Rs 365.93 lacs of
interest cost) as compared to Profit of Rs, 28.42 Lac during previous year. However,
with the help of re-structuring of finance the company expects a better 2016-2017

FUTURE OUTLOOK:

The Flexible Intermediate Bulk Containers (FIBC) will register slightly faster growth than rigid
packaping industry, FIBCs will register strong advances due to the advantages they offer in
terms of loading and uploading products, their ability to handle great quantities of product per
container and efficiency advantages in terms of their reuse in closed loop distribution systems.
The global production cuts by the Companies in Europe and UJSA has resulted in the sourcing
shifted to India adding an important factor to the growth story.

The outlook is expected to be divergent in the coming years, with the developed economies,
showing improved prospects on account of recovery in fiscal consolidation,

The governmental agenda of the “Make In India" should be a growth booster fo the
manufacturing sector, and bring positive structural changes to the economy. Manufacturing
which contributes 16% of India’s GDP, under this scheme is expected to grow to 25%. Given

such a scenario it is expected that manufacturing sector would double itself every thres years.

DIVIDEND:

Constdering the accumulated l!osses and loss of the current year, along with the capital
requirement for ongoing business activity, the Boatd of Directors does not recommend any
dividend on the equity shares.

The dividend payout for the year under review is in accordance with the Company’s policy to
pay sustainable dividend linked to long term growth objectives of the Company to be met by
internal cash accruals.

RESERVE:

In view of the losses during the year under review, the Board of Directors of your Company doees
not propose to carry to any amount to reserve,

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAEYSIS REPORT:
As required under Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations with Stock Exchange, the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report is enclosed as a part of this Annual Report.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION:

The Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations require compliance with Specified Corporate
Govemance practices. These practices-have been fully implemented and a certificate from the
Practicing Company Secretary as well as a defailed report on Corporate Govemance appraved by
the Board of Directors of the Company is set out in the Annual Repert. The Company is
regularly complying with the Corporate Governance practices and also uploading the
information under the corporate filing & Dissemination System. Your Company has also entitled
in the new SEBI complaint sysiem (SCORES) enabling the investor to register their complaints
if any, for speedy redressal.

LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES

The Equity Shares of the Company continued to be listed with BSE Limited, however the trading
is suspended. The Company has received in-prineiple approval for revocation of suspension of
trading of Equity Shares vide letter reference DCS/COMP/QT/SB/162/2015-16 dated 17"
December, 2015 with the re-instaternent fee of Rs. 26,00 Lac plus service tax 14.50% (including
0.50% Swachh Bharat cess). But your Company being declared as Sick Company by BIFR, as
per the norms of re-instatement fee shall be Rs. 14.00 Lac plus taxes as stated above. The
representation was made in this regards to BSE Lid and the company is awaiting their positive
TEeSpONSE.

DEMATERIALIZATION: '
The Equity Shares of the Company can be held in dematerialized form. The Company has signed
the tripartite agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and existing Registrar & Transfer Agent for
dematerialization of existing holding of the stake holders. The Imternational Securities
Identification Number {ISIN), allotted to the Company is INE478C01021,

SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
Your Company has no subsidiary and associate companies.

FIXED DEPOSITS:

The Company had accepted unsecured loan to meet the working capital requirement of the
Company from the friends and relatives of the Promoter. The acceptance of said unsecured loan
has resulted into non-compliance with section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, The interest is
timely paid on these unsecured Loans and such loans have no specific maturity date. The
business circumstances have forced the Company to avail unsecured loan. The Management is of
the opinion that considering the Company being under BIFR purview, the consequences
associated with contravention of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be diluted.

DIRECTORS:

At the forthcoming Anmual General Meeting, ShriAkshay D. Bhatt will retire by rotation and
being eligible offer himself for re-appointment. A brief resume / particulars relating to him are
given separately given under the report of Corporate Govemance.



KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
Mr. Bharat C. Parekh, Managing Director of the Company as on March 2016

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT:

Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of Listing
Regulation, the Company has formuleied risk management policy and the same has been placed
on the Company website. However at present the Company has not identified any element of risk
which may adversely affect the functioning of the Company.

BOARD EVALUATION:

The Board of Directors have carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board
Committee and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Corporate
Governance requirement as prescribed under Listing Regulations. Listing Regulation mandates
that the Board Shall monitor and review the Board evaluation frame work.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board afler secking input from all the
Directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness
of Board Process, information and functioning ete.

The Performance of the committee was evaluated by the Board after seeking input from
Committee members on the basis of the criteria such as composition of the commiitee,
effectiveness of the committee meeting etc.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration committee reviewed the performance of
individual director on the basis of the critetia such as contribution of individual directors to the
Board and Committee meeting such as preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful
and constructive contribution and input in the meeting ete.

In separate meeting independent directors, the performance of the non-independent directors,
performance of the Board as a whole was evaluated, taking into account the views of the
executive directors and non-executive directors. The same was discussed in the Board meeting
and the followed the meeting of independent Directors at which the Performance of the Board,
its committee and individual directors was also discussed.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBLE COMMITTEE:
The Company understands and values Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives of the
Government and has also noted the requirement of CSR activities in terrns of Companies Act,

2013, But the requirement of mandatory implementation of CSR activities is not applicable to
your Company.



EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: _

Pursuant to section 92{3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rule 2014, the extract of Annual Return (Ferm MGT-9) as on
the financial year ended 31% March, 2016is enclosed to the Directors’ Report.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAM AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
The Company has practice of conducting familiarization program of the independent directors as
detailed in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of the Annual Report.

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE ELOWER POLICY:

In pursuance to the provisions of section 177(9} and {10} of the Companies Act, 2013, Vigil
Mechanism to Directors and Employees to report genuine concerns has been established.

The Purpose of the Whistleblower Policy is to allow employees to raise concem about
unacceptable, improper or unethical practices being followed in the organization. They will be
protected against any adverse action and / or discrimination, as a resuit of such reporting,
provided it is justified and made in good faith. The Chairman of the Audit Committes has been
designated for the purpose of receiving and recording any complaints under this policy. The
Vigil and Mechanism Policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company.

DISCLOSURE RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY
PERSONNEL, PERSONNEL AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

In accordance with section 178 and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Rules issued there under and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulation, the
Board of Birectors formulated Nomination and Remuneration Policy of your Company on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Salient aspect covered in
the Nomination and Retmuneration Policy covering the Policy on appointment and remuneration
of Director and other matters have been outlined in the Corporate Governance Report which
forms part of this Report.

DIRECTORS® RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanation
obtained from them, vour Directors make the following statements in terms of section 1343} ()
of the Companies Act, 2013
8} In the preparation of annual account, the applicable accounting standard has besn
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

b} Accounting Policies are listed in Notes to the financial statement have been selected and
applied consistently. Reasonable and prudent judgment as well as estimates have been

made so far as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as on
31% March, 2016 and of the Profit of the Company for that period.

¢} Proper and sufficient care for maintenance of adequate accounting records has been taken

in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 s0 as to safeguard the
assets of the Company and to detect and prevent fraud and other irregularities.

d) The Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis



e) Internal financial controls system is in place and the same has been followed by the
Company. Further such Internal Financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively.

f} Proper system to ensure Compliance with the provisions of all applicable law and such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PERSONNEL:

There were no employees covered w's 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule 2014

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO:
a) Conservation of Energy:
1. Energy Conservation measures taken:
a) Regular monitoring of consumption, efforts for increase in power factor up to date
maintenance.
b) Adopied natural lights whenever possible
¢) Improved operation method helped in achieving better productivity which turns
into reduction the power consumption.
d) Greater employee awareness made about the need of energy conservation which
in turn resulted in switching off lights, fans and machinery when not required.
2. Additional Investments and proposals, if any, being implemented for reduction of
consumption of energy : Nil
3. Impact of the measures at (1) and (2) above for reduction: of energy conservation and
consequent impact on the production of goods. It reduces the energy bill, however the
exact impact cannot be measured

b} Technology absorption
The Management keeps itself abreast of technology advancement in the industry and has
adopted the state of the art transaction, billing and accounting system and also rigk
managetnent selution.

¢} Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo: Nil

AUDITORS:

M/s B. R. Dalal& Co. Chartered Accountants, retires at the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annnal General Meeting and have expressed their willingness to continue as Stahrtory Auditor
for the Financial Year 2015-16. The relevant certificate to the effect that their appointment, if
made, will be in pursuant to section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been received. The
resolution for their re-appointment is being submitted to the Annual General Mesting,



AUDITORS' REPORT:
The Comments in the Aunditors Report are self explanatory and suitably explained in the Notes to
the Accounts,

SECRETARIAL AUDIT:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies
(Appointtnent and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014, your Company has
appointed M/s GIRISH MURARKA & CO., Practicing Company Secretaries to conduct the
Secretarial Audit of your Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed to this Report and
the Said Report does not contain any adverse qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS AND GUARANTEES:
The Details of Investment made and loan advanced by the Company have been given in note no.
15 to the Financial Statement.

The Company has not given any guarantee pursuant to the provisions of section 186 of
Companies Act, 2013

SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:
The Company has no Subsidiary, Associates and Joint Venture Companies.

SICK INDUSTRIAL COMPANY:

As informed earlier, the Company had been declared as Sick Industrial Company w's 3() (o) c-f
Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provision) Act, 1985, at BIFR hearing held on 2%
December, 2005 and IDBI was appointed as Operating Agency.

At the hearing held on 1* September, 2010 BIFR has approved the Rehabilitation Scheme under
reference 55-10. The IDBI has be¢n appointed as Monitoring Agency and Monitoring
Committee has been constituted for review and appraisal

At the direction of BIFR, the Company had submitted Modified Draft Rehabilitation Scheme and
all the clarification & explanation with regards to said MDRS had been submitted through IDBI,
Monitoring Agency to BIFR. The BIFR has to fixed the next hearing for sanction of MDRS and
allow allotment of 300 Lacs equity shares, Application Money from SICOM INVESTMENT
AND FINANCE LIMITED & thereby the Net Worth of the Company gets positive,

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has an internal conirol system commensurate with the size, scale and complexity
of its operations. The Internal Audit Department monitor and evaluate the efficacy and adequacy
of internal control system in the Company, its compliance with the operating system, accounting
pelicies and procedures of the Company. These are routinely tested and certified by Statutory as
well as Internal Auditors. The Significant audit observations and the follow up action are
reported to the Audit Committee,



DISCLOSURE AS PER SEXUAL HARRASMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Pursuvant to section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 read with rule 14, the internal committee constitoted under
the said Act has confirmed that no complaint / case has been filed / pending with the Company
during the year.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2613,

There are no material changes and commitment which could affect the company’s financial
position has ocecurred between the end 6f financial year and the date of this report.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE:

Your Company has received declaration from all the independent directors confirming that they
meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013
read with Schedutes and Rules issued there under as well as Regutation 25 of Listing Regulation

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s
length basis and were in ordinary course of business. There are no materially stgnificant related
party transactions made by the Company with Promoter, Director, Key Managerial Personnel or
other destgnated person which have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

CODE OF CONDUCT:
The Board of Director has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the Member of the
Board and all employees in the course of day to day business operation of the Company.

The Code lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expecied to be
followed by the Directors and designated employees in their business deating and in particular on
matters relating to integrity in the work place, in business practices and in dealing with the
stakei::&lders. All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have complied with
the Code

HUMAN RESOURCES DEVELOPMENT:

Many initiatives have been taken to support business through organizational efficiently, process
change support and various employee engagement programs which has helped the Organization
to achieve higher productivity level. A significant effort has also been undertaken to develop
leadership as well as technical / functional capacities in order to meet future talent requirement.

The Company’s HR process such as hiring and on-boarding, fair transparent on line performance
evaluation and talent management process, state-of-the-art workmen development process and
market assigned policies have been seen as benchmark practice in the Industry. The Employees
are encouraged to express their views and are empowered to work independently. The
Employees are given the opportunity to leam through varicus small projects which make them

look at initiatives from different perspectives and thus provide them with the platform to become
result oriented.



The Management of the Company enjoy cordial relation with its employees at all levels, The
Boatd of Directors wishes to place its highest appreciation for the contribution made by all the
employees in achieving growth of the Company.

ENHANCING SHAREHOLDERS VALUE:

Your Company believes that its members are among its most imporiant stakeholders.
Accordingly your Company’s operations are comunitted to the pursuit of achieving high level of
operating performance and cost competitiveness, consolidating and building for growth,
enhancing the productive assets and resource base and nurturing overall corporate reputation

CASH FLOW STATEMENT:

In conformity with the clause 32 of the Listing Agreement, the Cash Flow Statement for the year
ended 31% March, 2016 annexed hereto.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the assistance and co-operation extended by
SICOM Investment and Finance Limited (SIFL), Kokan Mercantile Co-op. Bank Limited, Union
Bank of India, Government authorities, customers, vendors and members. Your Directors also

wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the commitied services by the
Companry’s executives, staff and workers.

For and on behalf of ﬂle Board

Sd/-
Place: Mumbai B. C. Parckh
Date: 30" May, 2016 CHAIRMAN



REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Directors submit their report on the Corporate Governance of the Company for the
Financial year 2015-2016.

COMPANY PHILISOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANC

The Company endeavours to improve upon the aspects like transparency,
professionalism, accountability and fair disclosures on an ongoing bagis and takes
necessary steps towards growth and enhancing the value of its sharcholders. The
Cornpany firmly believes that the business is built on ethical values and principle of
transparency. Good Governance is an essential ingredient of any business, a way of life
rather than a mere legal compulsion. The Company Philosophy on Corporate Governance
is to adopt internal and external measures to increase the level of transparency,
accountability, business risk management, intemal control system and their adequacy,
human resource development, enhancing shareholders value and to respect the laws of
land & rights of stakeholders and to uphold at all times fundamental values of
accountability, probity and transparency.

GOVERNANCE FRAMWORK:
The Company’s Governance structure consist of Board of Directors, its Committee and
the Management.

BOARD STRUCTURE:

Board Leadership:

The Company has a well balanced Board of Directors with members from diverse
backgrounds who have experience and expertise in various fields. Out of 5 Member on
the Board, 3 are independent Directors who are qualified professionals and well known
for their experience, One is Managing Director and One is Promoter Woman Director.

Board Commitice:

The Committee has been constituted by the Board with specific terms of reference and
have an optimum representation of Board Members. Presently there are four committees
of the Board viz Audit Committee, Share Transfer / Investor Grievance Commitiee,
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Business Risk Commitice.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board of Directors had met four times during the financial year 2015-16. These
meeting were held on 18" May, 2015, 13% August, 2015, 14® November, 2015 and 11"
February, 2016

Mame of Direcior

Category of
Directorship

No.of Board
Meeting
attended

Attendance
of last
AGM

Mo.of Other
Drirzctotship

Member

Chairman

Mr. B. C. Parekh

Promoster —
Meanaging

Director

4

YES

M, Ishan D, Selarka

Non
Executive
Independent
Director

YES

Mr. Akshay Bhatt

Non
Executive
independent

Director

YES

M. Sandeep Poddar

Non
Executive

Independent




Director
Mrs. Darshana B. Fromoter- 3 YES - - -
Parekh Woman

Director
Audit Committee:

The terms of reference of Audit Committee is according to Clause 18 of Listing
Regulation and section 177 of Companies Act, 2013 which, Inrer-afia, includes to
overseas the Company’s financial reporting process, to review Directors’ Responsibility
Statement, changes, if any, in accounting policies and reasons for the same, qualification
in draft Auditors’ Report, performance & independence of Statutory and intemnal
Auditors, report on the Company’s internal auditors, financial statement audited by the
Statutory Auditor and also review the information relating to Management Discussion
and Analysis of financial statement and resulte of the operations, statement on significant
related party transactions and internal control system,

The Audit Committee consist of Mr. Ishan D, Selarka, Mr.Akshay Bhatt and Mr. Sandeep
Poddar as Members,

The Committee met on 8™ May, 2015, 13" August, 2015, 14™ November, 2015 and 11"
February, 2016 to review the Quarterly results, to review the financial conditions and
results of operations, overseas the general accounting practice and other management
policies.

Name of Director No. of Meeting held | No. of Meeting attended
Mr. Akshay Bhatt 4 4
M, Ishan D, Selarka 4 4
Mr. Sandeep Poddar 4 4

Nomimation and Remuneration Committee
The terms of reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is according to
section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 19 of the Listing Regulations.

During the year under review , the Company has not paid any remuneration to Directors.
The Board has, on recommendation of the Nomination & Remunerstion Committee has
framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their
Remuneration. The Remuneration Committee consist of Three Independent Professional
Director — Mr. Ishan D. Selarka, Mr. Akhsay Bhait, Mr. Sandeep Poddar under the
chairmanship of Mr. Akshay Bhatt

During the year the Committee Meeting was held on 13" August, 2015, 14® November,
2015 and 11™ February, 2016

Name of Director No. of Meeting held | No. of Meeting attended
Mr. Akshay Bhatt 3 3
Mr. Ishan D), Selarka 3 3
Mr, Sandeep Poddar 3 3




Share Transfer Committee/Investor Grievance Committee:
Sharcholder's Grievance Committee was constituted to look into sharcholder’ s/Investor’s

grievance relating to transferfiransmission of shares, non-receipt of Dividend/Annual
Reports, duplicate share certificate & other related matter. The Shareholder/Investor
Grievance committee has been constituted under the chairmanship of Mr. B.C. Parekh
with Mr.Akshay Bhatt and Mr. Sandeep Poddar. There is no pending complaints as on
30™ May, 2016

During the year the Committee Meeting was held on 13" August, 2015, 14 November,
2015 and 11™ February, 2016

Name of Director No. of Meeting held | No. of Meeting attended
Mt. Sandeep Poddar 3 3
M. Ishan D. Selarka 3 3
Mr. Akshay Bhatt 3 3

Risk Management Committee:
The Terms of reference of Risk Management Committee is in compliance of clause 49 of

the Listing Agreement, infer alia, includes to assess fisk in the operation of the business
of the Company, to mitigate and minimize of risk assessed in the operations of business
and periodic monitoring of risks.

During the year the Committce Meeting was held on 13® August, 2015, and 11
February, 2016. The constitution of the commitiee and attendance at the meeting are as
under:

Name of T¥irector No. of Meeting held | No. of Meeting attended
M. Bharat C. Parekh 2 2
Mr. Ishan D. Selarka 2 2
Mr. Akshay Bhatt 2 2

Performance Evaluation of Chairman, Directors, Board and Committees:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement, the Board has to carry out the annual performance evaluation for financial
year 2015-16 of Chairman, Directors, Board and its Committee.

The evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Chaimman, Directors, Board
and Committees comprises.inter-alia of the following parameters:

a} Directors bring an independent judgment on the Board discussion utilizing his
knowledge and experience especially on issues related to strategy, operationat
performance and risk management

b) Directors demonstrate awareness and concems about the norms relating to
Corporate Governance, disclosure and legal compliance.

¢} Directors contributes new ideas / insights on the business issues raised by the
Management.

d) Directors anticipate and facilitate deliberations on new issues that Management
and the Board should consider.

e) The Board / Committee meeting are conducted in a manner which facilitate open
discussion and robust debate on all key items on the agenda.

f) The Board reccives adequate and timely information to enable discussion /
decision making during Board Meetings.

¢} The Board addresses interest of all stakeholders of the Company.




h) The Committee is delivering on the defined objectives,
i} The Committee has the right composition to deliver its objectives.

Meeting of Independent Directors:

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 11* February, 2015,
inter alia, to consider:

1.
2.
3.

The Performance of Non-independent Directors and the Board as a whole.

The Performance of Executive Directors

The quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Comparyy
Management and the Board of Directors that is necessary for the Board of
Directots to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

Name & Designation of Compliance Officer:

Mr. B.C. Parckh

102 Atlanta

Naritnan point

Mumbai 400 021

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS:

Financial Year Date Venue

Tst April 2012 to 31~ March 2013 | Saturday,28" day of September, | Plot No, J-61, Additional MIDC
2013 at 1100 am. Area, Murbad, Dist. Thane

Tst April 2013 1o 31" March 2014 | Monday,25" day of September, Plot Na, J-61, Additional MIDC
2014 &t 11.30 a.m. Area, Mirbad, Dist. Thane

T51 Apnil 2014 to 317 March 2015 | Sawrday, 26" day of September, | Piot No, J-61, Additional MIDC
2015 at 1230 pm Area, Murbad, Dist. Thane

DISCLOSURES:

The related party transactions are reported in the notes to the Accounts of this Annual

Report. '

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
1. Publication of Quarterly financial resulta:

Quarterly, half yearly, nine-monthly and annual financial results of the Company
were published in English and Vernacular language.

“Limited Review Report” by Statutory Auditor of the Company for Quarterly
results were uploaded to BSE Limited. The Shareholders can also access the
Quarterly Results on the website of BSE Limited

Stock Exchange:

Your Company make timely disclosuse of necessary information to BSE Limited
in terms of Listing Agreement(s) and othet rules and regulations issued by SEBI
BSE Corporate compliance and Listing Centr:

All periodical compliance filing, inter alia, Shareholding Patiem, Corporate
Governance Report, Outcome of The Board Meeting, Status of Sharcholders’
Complaint, Corporate announcement, amongst others are filed electonically on
the Listing Centre.




SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON 315" MARCH, 2016

Sr. No. | Category of Shares Nu, of Shares % of total shares
(A} | Promoter & Promoter Group
a) Individual 37020509 86.17
b} Body Corporate 2714117 6.32
¢) Other 481588 1.12
Sub — Total 40216214 91.61
(B) | Public Shareholding
1.Institution:
a) Mutual Funds 9392 0.03
b) Financial Institution & Bank 231160 0.58
¢) Foreign Institutional Investor 0
260552 (.60
2. Non-Institutional
a) Individuzal
b) Clearing Members 302 0.00
¢) Non-Resident Indian 3904 0.01
d) Body Corporate 47336 Q.11
¢} Individual 2435162 5.67
Sub - Total 2747256 6.39
Grand Total 42963470 100.00
OTHER DISCLOSURES:
a) Related Party Transactions:

b)

d

During the financial year 2015-16, the Company has no materially significant
Related Party Transaction which is considered to have potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at Large.

The Company has adopted a whistle blower policy and has established vigil
mechanism for employee and directors to report about unethical behavior. No
person has been denied access to the Chairman and Audit Committee.

Reconciliation of share capital audit: A qualified practicing Company Secretary
carried out a Share Capital audit to reconcile the total admitted equity share
capital with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL} and Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed aa::plit},r
share capital. The Audit Report confirm that the total issued / paid vp capital is in
agreement with total number of shares in physical form and the total number of
dematerialized shares held with NSDI, and CDSL.

Caode of Conduct:

The Company has in place a Code of Conduct applicable to the Board as well as
designated employees. The Members of the Board and senjor management
personne] have affirmed the compliance with the code applicable to them during
the year ended 31% March, 2016,

The Annual Repott of the Company contain certificate by the Managing Director
in terms of Regulation 34(3) and Part D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulation
based on the compliance declarations received from the Independent Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Senior Management.



SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION :

Annual General Meeting
Place, Date and Time

34" Annual General Meeting will be held at the
Registered Office of the Company at Plot No. J-61,
Additional MIDC Area, Murbad, District Thane on

| Saturday, the 17" day of September, 2016 at 11.30

pm
Financial Year ending 31¥ March, 2016
Date of Book Closure Monday, 12" September, 2016 to Saturday, 17" |
September, 2016 (both days inclusive} for the
'| purpose of Annual General Meeting
Listing with Stock Exchange Equity Shares of the Company are listed with BSE
Limited (Scrip Code 500421}
Face Vatue of Equity Shares Re. /- each
Market Price Data The Shares of the Company has been suspended for
Trading and hence no data can be furnished
Dematerialization of Shares As per the directive of the Stock Exchange, the
Companies Shares are dematerialized. The
Company has made the amangement with NSDL
and CDSI, for demat of the Shares. ISIN is
| INEX78CO1021
Share Transfer Agent Big share Services Private Limited

E/2, Ansa Industrial Estate, Saki Vihar Road, Saki
Naka, Andheri East, Mumbai 400 072

Tele : 022-28470652 / 40430260

Fax : 022-28475207

'| Email : info@bigshareonline com




hllanagement Discussion and Analysis

Qverall review, industry Structure and Developments:

The outlook for the years shead is [ikely to be influenced by three factors, 1) Chinas structural
changes from a manufacturing, and investing economy to services led one, 2} Commedity and
energy prices, 3} Monetary policies around the world.

Globat growth is expected to pick up to 3.40% in 2016 and 3.60% in 2017. The advanced
economies continued to show modest and uneven improvements, as the US continued to be
resilient. The emerging markets and developing economies that contribute to almost 70% of
the global growth continued ta be strained, however in a better position compared to the
previous year

The polymer sector in India is estimated at over $32bn and this is expected to grow upwards
of 8% over the next five years. Despite being the world’s third largest market behind US and
China, India lags in the consumption of polymer

India’s per capita consumption stood at below 10kgs, compared to the world average of
30kgs. With increased sales in automobiles, the government’s initiatives of lining canals and
demand for packing material increasing on account of retail growth this sector Is slated to
grow at double digits in the coming years.

Opportunities and Threat

Your Company enjoys the benefit of experience of over three decades in the manufacturing
of FIBCs. The strength of the business lies in the supply of the manufactured FIBCs that reach
the end user and not the Trader. The Management expertise and their association with
Polymer processing industry have always been an added advantage to your Company. The
Management has embarked on Operational excellence and buslness strategy growth. Fresh
steps have been taken to improve cost effectiveness, excellence in product yuality, customer
service and operational praductivity.

Fluctuating prices of raw materlals / raw matenal shartages — The Main raw material used in
the manufacture of FIBC is polypropylene, which is a crude derivative and subject tao price
fluctuation. The Shortage of Raw Materials further aggravates stiff competition for Raw
Matarials. This Raw Material account for 60 to 70% of cost of FIBC manufacturing and the end
result would be raising pressure on prices. However with the proper planning, the
Management has managed to keep these uncertainties under control.

There is tremendous shortage of skilled manpower and being a labor intenslve industry, it has
the potential to affect the production. However the Management has adequate system in
place to constantly monitor manpower requirement, provide internal training.

Your company a certified 150 9001:2008 adheres te the latest intemational standards, and

believes in adapting the best practices in the industry, be it people, processes, quality of our
products or internal systems



Segment wise Parformance

Presently the Company deals in one segment only which is manufacturing of packaging items.

Future Outlogk
The Directers’ Report has specifically dealt with the subject under the head “Future Qutlook”

Internal control System

The Company has adequate system of internal cantral with regards to purchase of stores, raw
materials including components, Plant & Machineries, equipment’s, sale of goods. The
internal control system Is supplemented by well documented policies and guidelines and is
conducted by internal audit The Internal Audit Report are periodically put to and are
reviewed by Audit Committee and top Management on quarterly basis

Human relations

Human resource is the most important resource and need to be used efficiently. The
Company views its employees as valuable resources who are important stakeholders in the
growth, prosperity and development of the organization. The Company is committed to
provide necessaty training [/ conduct development programs to provide necessary skills
required within the employee. The Management of the Company enjoy cordial relations with
its employee at all levels,

Financial performance with respect to operational performance

For the want of additional working capital, the Company operates at low capacity utilization
resulting in the operaticnal cash profits to be low and further due to high cost of borrowing
the bottom line is resulted in a loss. The financial constraint is also due to your Company
being declared a Sick Company under the Sick Industrial Companies Act; 1985, However the
Management is putting all its effort for achieving best level of operation. Once these
constraints are resolved, the cost saving on Purchase, Process improvement giving better
yield and up-gradation on existing equipment will have muitiplying impact on the financial
performance.



CERTIFICATION

Ta,
The Members of
TP1 INDLA LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance, by TPI India Limited, for
the vear ended on 31™ March, 2016 as stipulated in clause 40 of the Listing Agreement of the Said
Company with Stock Exchange.

The Compliance of the Conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management,
QOur examination was limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the
Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance #s stipulated in the
said clause. It is neither an andit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the
Company.

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in
SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, '

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company not the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For B. R. Dalal & Co
Chartered Accountanis

Sd-
Bharat Dalsl
Proprietor
Place: Mumbai Membership No. 31052
Date : 30™ May, 2016 FRN : W102024
' Digitally Signed



DECLARATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR

L, Mr. Bharat C, Parekh, Managing Director of TPI India Limited, hereby declare that all the Board
Members of the Board of Directors have affirmed comphiance with code of conduct applicable to them as
laid down by the Board of Directors in terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 for the year ended 31 March, 2016.

For TP1 IND1A LIMITED

Sd/-
Place : Muombai Bharat C. Parckh
Date ; 30® May, 2016 Mansging Director



CERTIFICATION BY MANAGING DIRECTOR

L

I, Bharat Chimanlal Parekh, Managing Director of TPI INDIA LIMITED hereby certify that:

a) I have reviewed financial statement and cash flow statement for the year ended 31" March,
2016 and to the best of my knowledge and belief:
i) The Statement do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading.
ii) These Statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and
are in compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

b) There are, {0 the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during which are fraudnlent, iflegal or violative of the Company’s Code of
Conduct.

¢) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control system of the
Company, pertaining to the financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and
the Audit Committee, deficiency in the design or operation of such internal contro, if any,
of which we have aware and the steps aken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

¢} We have indicated to the Auditors and Aundit Committee that :

i} There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial
tepotting during the year under reference;

i) There has not been any significant change in the accounting policies during the year
and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements and

iify ~ There has not been any instances during the vear of significant fraud of which we
had become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an
employee having a significant rofe in the Company’s internal control over financial

reporting.
For TP1 INDIA LIMITED
Sd-
Place : Mumbasi Bharat C. Parckh

Date : 30* May, 2016 Managing Director
g



Form No. MGT -9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the Bnancial year ended on 31° March, 2016

Pursvant o section 92 of the Act and Rule 12{1) of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014
I. Registration Details
1. CIN : L2B1290MHI1982PLCO26917
2. Registration Date ; L4th April, 1982
3. Name of the Company : TPI India Limited
4. Category / Sab-Category of the Company ¢ Company Limited by Shares / Indian
MNon-Government Company
5. Address of Registered Office and contact : Plot No. J-61, Additional MIDC,
Details Murbad, District Thane
Phone :
Email : Grievance{@tpiindia.in
Website : www.tpiindia.in
6. Whether Listed Company (Yea/No} : Yes
7. Name, Address and Contact details of : BIGSHARE Services Pvt. Lid.
Registrar and Transfor Agent E-2/3, Ansa Industrial Estate,
Saki Vihar Road, Saki Naka
Andheri East, Mumbai 400 072
Tele: 022 — 2847 0632
022 — AB30200
Email ; info@bigshareonline.com
H. Principie Business Activities of the Company
Name and Description of NIC Code of the % of the Total
Main Products / Services Froducts / Services  Turnover
Kmafilined PP Bags / FIBC — Bulk Bags 39239004 L
L. Particulars of Holding, Subsidiacy and Associate Companies Mil
IV. Shareholding Pattern ( Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity

a) Category wise Shareholding Refer Annexure 1
b)Y Sharehelding of Promoter Refer Annexure 2
¢) Change in Promoter Holding Refer Annexure 3
d) Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholder Refer Annexure 4
Other than Director, Promoter and holder of GDRs
And ADRs

2) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel  Refer Annexure §



V. INDEBTEDNESS Rs. In Lac

Indebtedness of the Company including interest cutstanding / accrued but not due

Secered Loam  Unsecured Loan  Deposit Total
At the beginning of
Financial Year
a) Principle Amount 1336.93 417,23 e 1754.15
b) Interest duc 35.99 — ares 35.99
¢) Interest accrued but —_ --e- —-- veme
Mot due
{Changes during the
Financial year
8) Addititon : Principle 50.00 465.26 - 515.26
b) Addition : Interest 306.40 17.72 - 324.12
¢) Reduction : Principle ) ) 280,92 —_ 31260
i) Reduction : Interest 200.18 17.72 217.90
At the end of Financial
Year
a) Principle Amount 1355.16 601,57 - 1936.72
b) Interest due 142.21 - - 142.21
¢}y Imterest accrued but - - B mn=
Mot Due

VL. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Sr. Managing Director Marketing Officer
No. Particulars of Remuneration Bharat C. Parekh Avinash B. Parekh
1 Guaraniee Commission 3,00,000.00 Nil

2 Salary Nil 3,60,000.00



SHAREHOLDING PATTERN [Equity Share Capital bralup o percentage of the Total Enuity

Cutapory-wise Sharshokiing
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Shareholding Pattern of Top Ten Shareholders (Othar than Director, Promotar and Holders of GB#s and ADRS

Anneoure 4
Sharcholding Cumulative Sharshelding
S, % of Total share of % of Total share of
MNa- Nama of tha Sharehalders No. of Sharas the Company No. of Shares tha Compiary
1 Strussad Assets Sishllisation
At the beging of the yaar 250000 D58 250000 0.58
Bought during the year g 0.00 250000 058
sold during the year 0 0.00 250000 0.58
At the erd of the year 250000 0.58 250000 0.58
2 M. Rupesh Dillp Xamdar
At the beging of the year 29300 007 29300 007
Bought durlng the year 0 0.00 29300 0.07
sold during the vear ) 000 29300 nGg?
At the end of the year 29300 Qa7 29300 Qa7
3 Sanjay Chandrakant Tanna
At the beglng of the year 1] 000 27800 Q.06
Bought during the year 27800 0.00 27800 006
sald durlng the year 1] .07 27a00 .06
At the end of the year F7A00 [114] 3 27800 0.06
L) Exzt Namazl
At the beging of the year 23000 Q.06 25000 006
Bought durlng the yaar 0 Q.00 25000 006
sald during the year 0 0.00 25000 0,06
At the end of the year 25000 0.06 25000 0.0G
5 Jaydesp 5. Mehta
At the beging of the year 1370 .03 13750 0.03
Baught during the yvear 1) .00 13750 no3
sold during the year 30 0.00 13750 0.03
At the end of the year 13720 0.03 13750 003
i Kusum Mehta :
At the beging of the year 13300 0.03 13300 0.03
Bought during the year 10120 0.0z 23420 005
sold during the year 0 0.00 23420 005
At the ernd of the yaar 23420 005 23420 0.05
¥ Shestal Ashak Dholakia
At the beging of the year 8400 002 400 aqz
Bought durlng the year 4] n.og 2400 0.0
sold during the year o 0,00 9400 .02
At tha and of the year 300 062 9300 0.02
g Ravin H. Bhagat
At tha beging of the year 9200 0402 g30] Q.02
Bought during the year 1] 0.00 9200 .02
sald durlng the year 1] 000 5200 0.02
At the end of the year 2200 002 5200 g.02
9 Cwyen Btandra Mohta
At the beging of the yesr 10000 0.02 10000 X1}
Baught during the year 1] 0.00 10000 002
sald during the year 0 0.00 10000 14 1]
At the end of the year 10000 0.0 10000 Q.02
10 Vasumad V. Mandalla
At the beging of the year 9500 0.02 8900 Doz
Bought during the year 0 .00 Lo 0.0z
sold during the year 0 A LI a0 0.0z
At the end of the year Q50 002 9900 0.0z
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Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2015
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No, 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members

TPI India Limited

Plot No. J-61, Additional MIDC,
Murbad,

District Thane 401 121

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by TPl India Limited
{hereinafier called the “Company”). The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provide us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officer, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the
period covering the financial year ended 31% March, 2016, complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board —process and
compliance-mechanism in place io the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafier :

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and retumns filed and other
tecord maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 31¥ March, 2016
according to the provisions of :

1. ‘The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under

2. The Securitics Contracis (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made
there under

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings:

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act)
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992 (now known as SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Repulation 2015



¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar 1o an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations 1993 regarding the Companies and dealing with
Client.

¢} The Becurities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 { Delisting of Equity Share from Delhi Stock Exchange
Limitd, Ahmedabad Stock Exchenge Limited and Kolkatta Stock
Exchange Limited is pending)

We have also examined the Compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
1. Secretarial Standard issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
2. The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with The BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc mentioned above. The Equity Shares
of the Company continued to be listed with BSE Limited, however the trading is
suspended. The Company has received in-principle approval for revocation of suspension
of trading of Equity Shares vide letter reference DCS/COMP/OT/SB/162/2015-16 dated
17" December, 2015 with the re-instatement fee of Rs. 26.00 Lac plus service tax
14.50% (including 0.50% Swachh Bharat cess). But your Company being declared as
Sick Company by BIFR, as per the norms of re-instatement fee shall be Rs. 14.00 Lac
plus taxes as stated above. The representation was made tn this regards to BSE Ltd and
the company is dwaiting their positive response.

We further report that there is no events / actions in pursuance of:
a} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008
b) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India (buyback of securities } Regulations
1998.
¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employees Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is dufy constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors, The Change in
the Composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance of the provisions of the Act.

Adequate Notice is given to all the Directors o schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifieations on agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.



All the decision at Board Meeting and Committes Meetings are carried out unanimously
as recorded in the minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors or Committees of the
Board, as the case may be,

We further report that there is adequate system and processes in the Company
coramensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance of the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the andit period, there were no major events which had
bearing or the Company’s affairs in purmmnce of the above referred laws, rules,
regulations, guidelines ete,

For GIRISH MURARKA & CO.
Compapy Secretaries

Sd/-
Girish Murarka
Place: Mumbai Proprictor
Date : 30™ May, 2016 : CP - 4576
ACS - TD36



. INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORY

TO THE MEMBERS OF TPI INDIA LIMITED
Report on the Financial $ ents:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of TP! INDIA LIMITED {“the
company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant aceounting policies and other explanatary infonmation.

Management's Responslbility for the Flpancial Statements:

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
acceptad in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rutes, 2014. This responsibility
also includes the. maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting the frauds and other iregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance of internal financial control, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial staterments that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
of eITor. k.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial stgemenis based on our
audit. We have taken intc account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statoments are frea from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disciosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstalement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or emor. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the financial statements that give true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes



evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements. We telieve that the awdit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the financial statemants.

I} Basig for Qualified Opinion:

(1) The Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Current and Non- current Liabilities,
Loans and Advances given and faken are subject to confirmation,
reconciliation, adjustments and provision, if any. Which may arise out of
confirmation and reconciliation.

{2} Interest on deferred Sales Tax Llability of Rs. 120.65 lace have not been
provided in the accounts as stated in Notes No. 25 (21).

The amount of (1) above cannot be ascertzined precisely. The effect of the {2)
above will be ta increase the loss and reduce the Reserve by Rs. 120.65 lacs.

Qualified Opinion:

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph and subject to Nots No. 25 (3] and {21) of Notes to Accounts
and read together with other notes thereon, the financial statements give the
information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2016, .

b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Loss for the year ended con
that date; and

¢) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

II} Report on other Leqal and Regulatory Requirements:

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act,
(hereinafter referred to as the “Crder”), and on the basls of such checks of the books
and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we give in the Annexure’ A" a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which te the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.



b) In our apinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company 8o far as appears from our examination of those books,

c} the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

d) In our opinicn, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 20H4.

e} On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2018, taken on record by the Board of Directors, nene of the directors is disqualified as
an 31 March, 2016, from being appointed as a diractor in terms of Section 1684(2) of the
Act.

f)i With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Controls over financial
reporting of the Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure

q) With respect to tha other matters includead in the Auditor's Repont in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,2014, and according to the
information and explanations given to us:, in our opinion and to the best of our
knowledge and belief and to our best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
positicn] :

. The Company did not have any long-term confracts including derivatives
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses]

iii. An amount of Rs. 3,17,428/-is not transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company. However the same has been kept in the separate
bank account [refer Note No.25 (17)]

FOR B R Datlal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.W102024

Sdf-
Bharat Dalal
Membership No. 31052
Place: USA,
Dated: 30" May 2016.
{Digtially signed)



ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT.

Refered to in paragraph I1). 1 of the Independant Auditor's Report of even date to the
Members of TPl INDtA LIMITED on the financial statements as of and for the year

ended 31* March, 2016.

1. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and
based on our examination of books, the Company is maintaining proper records
showing full particulars Including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b} All the Fixed Assets have not been physically verified by the management during the
year but there is regular programme of verification which in our opinion is reasonable
having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its business. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such vesification.

{c} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and
based on our examination of books, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in
the name of the company.

2. {a) The Inventories have been physically verified by the management at the end of
the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable.

{b) In our opinion, the discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks
and the book records are not material and have been properly dealt in the books of
accounts.

3. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and
based on our examination of books, the Company has not granted any Loan Secured or
Unsecured to companies, fims, Limited Liability Partnership or other the parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly the provisions of clause (i) (a), (b) and (c) of the Companies {Auditor's
Report} Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and
based on our examination of books, provigions of section 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with In respect of loans, investments,
guarantees, and sacurity.

5. The Company has accepted certain deposits from public for which the
directives Issued by the Reseorve Bank of India and the provision of Secfion 73 to
76 or any other relgvant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
framed there under have not been complied with. For the above referred accepted
deposits, company has not complied with the provisions lilke advertisernent in



news papet, filing of annual return, maintalning the liquid assets, rate of interest
and the limit up to which the deposits can be accepted from the public.

We were informed that no order has been passed by Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any
other Tribunal for the above said defaults.

6. Maintenance of Cost records has not been specified by the Central Governmeant under
Sub-Section {1} 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. &) According to the information and explanations given and the record of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
smployees' state insurance fund, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate
authorities have not been deposited within stipulated time with the appropriate
authenities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the arrears of outstanding
statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for & pericd of more
than six months from the date becoming payable are mentioned below:

(b} ) The undisputed statutory dues are as follows:-

Sr. Nature of | Financial Year Amount Romarks
No. | Dues

1 Deferred 1094-95 to 03-04 | 2,47,97,881/- | Relief sought
Sales Tax - under BIFR
Scheme

2. Additional 1994-95 to 03-04 | 1,67,84,583/~ Relief seeking

Demand on for in Revised
Assessemant MDRS for
of Sales Tax including this
for above Additional
years Liabilities for
sefting off
against un-

avalied Sales
Tax Defarral
Himit of Rs.
524.60 Lac

i According to information and explanation given, the disputed statutory dues
aggregating to Rs. 960.32 lacs in respect of income tax or sales tax or service



tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax and Cess that have not
been provided and deposited on account nf disputed matter pending before
appropriate authorities are as Under:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount of | Period to | Forum at
Statute Dues Duas which the | which
amount dispute is
relates pending
{TAct Penalty 124.89 Lacs £ Y 06-07 CIT (A)
Custom- Penalty 807.94 Lacs F Y 54-85 to | DGFT,
DGFT 99-00 Daihi.
Custom Act Duty 27869 lacs F Y 08-09 CESTAT.

8. Based on our audit procedure and according to the information and explanation
given to us, we state that the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings and interest to financial institution, bank, govemment or debenture
holders except the following:

Name Nature Period -Amount
SIFL Inferest QOct. 15 to March | 1,42,20,028/-
2316

(8). According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our
examination of books, the company has not raised by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments). In our opinion and according to
information and exptanations given to us, the company has applied the term loan for
the purposes for which that is raised. :

(10) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company
carmried out in accordance with the generally accepted Auditing practices in India and
according to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, we have
neither come across or noticed during the year, any instances of material fraud by
the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, nor have we been
informed of any such cases by the management.

{11} In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, no
managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance without the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
o the Companies Act.

{(12) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the
company is not a Nidhi Company and hence. Therefore, the provision of clause



3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented
upon.

(13) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and
based on our examination of books, transactions with the related patties are in
compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable
and the required details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(14) According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall
examination of the Balance Sheet, the company has not made any preferential
alliotment or private placement of shares or fully or parly convertible debentures
during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv)
are not applicable to the company and not commented upon.

{15) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us and
based on our examination of books, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persens connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order and Sec. 192 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable and
commented upon

{16) According to the information and explanation given to us, in our opinion, the
campany is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not
applicable and commented upon.

For B. R. Dalal & Co.
Chartered Accountants.

Sa/-
Bharat Dalal
{Proprietor)
Membership No. 31052
Firm Rag. No:102024W
Place: USA
Date : 30" May, 2016
(Digitally signed)



“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Financial
Statements of TPl India Lid (refer to in Paragraph Il 2. ) of Independent Auditor's
Report of even date )

Report on the Intemal Financlal Controls under Clause (I} of Sub-section 3 of
Sectlon 143 of the Companles Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

To the Membars of TPI India Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TPl India
Limited {“the Company®} as of March 31, 2015 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls aover Financial
Reporting issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountanis of India”. These
responsibilties include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, inciuding adherence toc company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completaness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Campaniss Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility _

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financiat Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™ and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
both applicable te an audit of Intemal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whethar adeguate internal financial controls over

financial reporting was established and maintained and if such conirols operated
effactively in all material raspects.

Our audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of intemal financial controls over financial reporting included
obfaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procadures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Msaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's intemal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with gensrally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controt aver financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly refiect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are heing made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition
of tha company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls ovar financial reporting 1o
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over finangial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinlon

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us , the Company has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2048, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Conitrols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. _

For B. R. Dalal & Co.
Chartered Accountants,

Sd/-
Bharat Dalal
(Propriator)
Membership No. 31052
Firm Reg. No:102024W
Place; USA
Date : 30" May, 2018
(Digitally signed)



TPI India Limited
BALANCE § T 31ST MARCH, 20
EQUJTIES AND ELIABILITIES

1 LDERS" FUN
(a] Share capital
{B] Reserves and surplus

2 Share Monsy Fanding Allstment
3 Hon-Currpat Liablities

fa) Secured Loans

(bY Unsecured Loans

{d) OtherLong term Liabilities

{e)  Long term provisions

a Current Libilt
{a) Short-term Borrowings
{b) Trade Payables
(¢ Other Cuwrrent Liabilithes

ASSETS
1 NONCURRENT AS
f@]  Fixed Asasts

i Tangible Assets

{n intangible Assets

fitfl  Capital Work in progress
il
{0y HNon-Curmant Investrments

i) Deferred Tax Assets

{&) Long Term Loanz ang advances
{e] Ciher Non Current Assets

1 CUREENT ASEETS
{a) Cument Investmenis
(b) Inventoras
e}  Trada receivables
{di Cash & Cash equivelents
fed  Short term Loans and sdvances
th  Other Current Assats

TOTAL
significant Aecounting Pollcles
Motes on Financlal Statements
ABPER (R ATTACHED REFORT OF
EVEN DATE
FOR B. R. Dalal AND CO,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Reglstration No. 1020248\
Sd/-

Bharat Dalal
PROPRIETOR
Membership No:31052
Digitally Signed

1w

Place ; USA
Date ; 30th May, 2016

Intangible Assats under Developr -

Rupees
Note 31-03-16 21-03-15
Nos
1 9,29,63,470 9,29,63,470
2 (11,71,75,442) (10,26,24,449))
i e |2,42,11,972); ~==————— {96,60,97
2,00,00,000 3,00,00.000
3 8,25,16,272 5,71,83,162
4 6,01,57,464 4,17,22,B80
5 - 29.15,148
& 14,26,73. 736 4,872,044 10.23.14,134
7 7,78,55,137 10,26.45,780
3 2.36,09,837 1,30,55,478
9 1,75,37456 53,15,955
------- 11,90,02,430 | w-eememmeeennenree
26,74,64,193 24,52,70,368
10 5.63,57,215 £.87,15191
- 563,567,215 = 58715191
11 7,08, 148 7,008,142
- - 7.09,143 7.09,148
12 564,086,145 5,18,35 180
13 12,22,44,752 8,82,03,9659
14 RA75.176 92,897,353
15 2,00.28,561 31,J6,65,613
16 32,432,156 21,03,57,830 38.39.514 iB8.58,46.029
26.74.64,153 24,52,70,368
25
25
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE
Board of Directors
$d/-
Bharat Chimanlal Parekh Directar
Sdf-
Akshay Dinubhai 8hatt Directar
Sdf-
Ishan Selarka Dirsitor
5d/-
Sandeep Podkdar Diractor
PMace: Mumbal

Date : 30th May, 2016




TPI India Limited

PROFIT AND LDSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH. 2616

Note
INCOME Mos
Sales & ingome from 17
other operations
{Other Income 18
EXYENDITURE )
Material Input 19
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Stock-in Process end Stock-inTrade
20
Mants Operational Expanses i1
Empioyes Benefits Expense 22
Administrative & salling Exp. 22
Interest & Flnance charges 24

PROFIT BEFORE DEPRECIATION
Depractatlon snd Armnortisation Expense
Profit Before exceptional & Extraordimary itemis and fax
Exteptional Itema -
Frofit Before Extraordinary items and iax
Extra ordinary Ilemn -
Profit for the year befors tax
LESS : Provision for taxation

Current Tax
Profit for the year

Eamings Per Share [EPS] per value Rs.
Baslc f diluted
My of shares used in computing weighted average EFS
AS FER (VIR ATTACHED REFORT OF
EVEN DATE
FOR B.R. Dalal AND CO,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Reglstration No.102024W
Sdf-

Bharat Dalal
PROPRIETOR
Membership No:31052

Digitally Slgned

Pace ; USA
Data :30th May, 2016

31-03-16
34,90.73,746
33,220,457
35,23,94,203
25.27.07,25%
{33,36,825)|
4,14,52,147
1,31.,06,701
200,328,740
3,65,92.954
36,05,61,015
(81,66,813)
53,584,180
{1,45,50,993)
(1,45,50,993}
(1,45,50,593)|
{1,45,50,993)|
1/- each
(0.51}
FOR AND DN BEHALF OF THE
Board of Directors
5d/-
Bharat Chimanlal Parekh
5d/f-
Akshay Dinubhal Bhatt
Sd/-
1shan Sefarka
W‘
Sandeep Poddar
Plate: Mumbai

Dats : 30th May, 2015

Rupess

31-03-1%

31,88,14,356

2,93,809

319108165

22,4474 3680

{53,49,900]

4,.03,65,227
1,00,94.592
13735840
2, 68,B1,568

31,02,01,596

89,06,569
£0,64,134

28,42,435

28,42,435

2E,42,435

28,42,425

1/-

0.07

Director
Director
Directar

Director




TPl india Limited

TEM THE EN
ACaeh Flow from Qperating sciivition
- Nt proiit before tax
- s
nterest Expansss

M_ll.n‘lmants for:

Trade and ather raceivables
Inventories

Trade payables

Direst tooced paid [ ret )
Cash from oparating activities bafor esxcaplional fems
m.

Extra Crdinary items
Mat caeh from operating actvivitlaz

Pt of fxad assetsf Gapital Expendiiurs

Purchasa of inveatments

|.oans advanced o ofber compkinies

Irmbererat rcaivad

Dividend Recetved

Mel cash from f [usad In 1 rwesting aclivitias
Inancin

Incrapsafidecrease) In shert term borrowings

procaade from long term bomrowings
Irlarest pald

et Casgh from £ [ Used in ] financing aclyilies

D. W&t Increase { { decreass ) in Cash nel Cash Equivalent

Cash and Cash equivalent at baginning of the yaar
Cash and Cagh equivalent 41 -and of the year

Motas: )
Cashi (low satement has been propared under the indirect method as a1 out in Accouniing Smndard - 3 isaued by the

1

2

Ingtituix of Chanered Accountenis of India.

14650553
6384180
36582094
-326583|
-5150

28054443
=M BTED
~A57086%
10071444

13146212
B6B43

13055284

0

0

13058369

5941352
Y
~267400
320585
5150

EBFTI04

-24THE43
43TSTGM
-28871443

~FO04442
B2TT

g207253

21.'!1?15

Ba7ET7E

201415

2842435
6064134
27181568
211552
2513
ol
35874072
0
30424153
1189568
-2862695
a
-40308487
0
1]
0308467
of
aQ
10592725
21201192
0
0
4640274
1250001
111140
211552
2813
L1
5149470
o
0

46186027
d584438
-28777750

9297353

Purcheae of fived essets inchudes movements of capital work-in-progress , wtite offs betwoen, the beginning and the

end of iive year.
3 Previous yeer figure regroupad/recasted whersver necessary.
AS PER OUR ATTACHED REFORT OF FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE
EVEN DATE Board of Diractors
FOR B. K. Dalal AND CO. 5d)-
CHARTERED ACCOIFNTANTS Bharat Chimanlal Parakh
Registration Mo, 102024W s5df-
5d/- Akshay Dinubhai Bhatt
Bharat Dald 54d/-
PROFRIETOR Ishan Selarka
Mambarship No:31052 Sdf-
Diitalty Signed Sandeap Poddar
Plage : USA Place; Mumbai

Date 30th May, 2015

Date : 30th May, 2016

Diractor

Director

Disector

Dirgetar



TPl India Limited

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

NOTE } SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
1,25.00,000 EQUITY SHARES OF
Rs. 1 each
500,000 PREF. SHARES OF
Rs. 100 each

ISSUVED SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP

4,29,63470  Equity Shares 1/~
500,000 preference shares 100/~

NOTE i RESERVES & SURPLUS
Capital Reserve
Capital redemption reserve
Share premium
EROEIT AND LOGS {30,68,32,449)
Add : profit and (loss) account balance (1,45,50,993)

Add Carrying ameunis of Fixed Aszsets deblied o -
retained earnings where useful life of the assel is
MIL ag oo 1/472014

NOTE 3 SECURED LOAN - Nea Cyrrent

Term Loah :
Kokan Mercantile Co-op. Bank Limited
SICOM Investment & Finance Limited

NOTE 4 DNSECURED I.0OANS- Nom Corrent

Inber Corporrate Deposits
Others

31-03-16

1,25,00,000
5,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

4,29,63.470

5,00,00,000

3.29.6347

15,42,84,000

1,99,24,000

{32,15,85,442]

(11,71,75,942)

65,16,272
7,560,00,000

8,25,16,272

40,000,000

5,5L.57.464

6,01,57,464

NOTE X ther Long term Eixhilits H éu t

CST Lizbilities

NOTE 6 Long terw provisions -

Prowisions far Employee benefits {Gratuity]

Rupees

{29,87,82,15%}
23,442,435
(1,08,22,725}

31-D3-15

1,25,00, 080
5,00,00,000

15,00,00,000

4,29,63,470

5,00,00,000

9.29.63.470

18,42,84,000

1,59,24,000

130,68,32,149)

(10,26,24,449)

96,93,162
4,75,00,000

3,71,93,162

40,000,000

3,77,22,880

4,17,22,380

29,15,148

29,15,148

4,852,944

4,872,944




NOTE

7 Shortterm Borpwing

pecurad
Working capltal Loans
Bawibt 2,78,55,157 2,91 45,780
SICOM INVESTMENT & FINANCE UMITED 5,00,00,000 725, 00,000
. T7.74,55,137 10,26 43,750
NOTE 3 TFrade Pxygbles Rupees
Cregilors dus supplics 1 32.06,591 B3, 30,998
Creditus for Expensss! services ) 58,096 3275798
Provisions fiw Broployee Beocfit 13,45,148 13 49,682
236,08 537 13055478
NOTE 4
Curtent maturities of long tern debt 30,060,000 30,00,000
Tntercei ncwiied and dus 14220028 3598 527
Unpaid dividend 117428 217428
1,7537.456 69,15,955
NOTE 10 FIXED ASSETS
Rupses
GROSS BLOCKE (AT COST)
A5 AT ADH DEDU AS AT
ASSETS 31-03-15] TION LToN 31-03-16
Rz. R5. Rz RE.
Tonibis Feseis
Land 21.73,120 . - 21,73.120
Factary bullding 5,31,63,379 36,748,545 - 66E 42,124
Plant & machinery 11.56,71,438 1,07.504 - 11,59,78,952
Electrical Installation Plant §8,52,456 - - BE,52,456
Factory Equipment 79.11.623 - - 29,12,623
Offica aquipment 15,30,617 - . 15.30.617
Funnbiure Fdunes 17,634,184 14,000 - 17,77.184
Lomputer 31,74,735 25855 - 31,00,550
Total (&} 20,0241 562 0,28, 204 . 20,42,67,T66
lptragible aERety
Tota! {B) . - - .
TOTAL| A+B} 20,02 41,562 40,26,204 - 20,17 68,564
FREVIOUS YEAR 20,51,90,836 59,43,451 1,08,92,725 20,02,41,562
Rupees
ASSETS DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
UPTO CEDL FOR THE TOTAL AS AT AS AT
31-03-15)A4u | IO TEAR 31-03-16/ 11-03-15
Ra. Rs. Ps. fis. Rs.
Tangiole ssFels
Land 2,15,282 - - 2,35,282 15,33,83% 16,233,838
Factory bublding 345,097,926 u 14,45,941 3,55,43,357 1,029,357 2.85,65,453
Plant & machnery 8,90.50,147 - 40,223,294 .30, 71441 2.1.407511 2,66,21,301
Electelcal Instalkstion Plant 2236375 - 149518 83.85,893 466,563 6,16,080
factory Equipment 26,35,235 - 40,911 26,786,136 236,487 277,395
Offlce equlpment 13,33.126 - 1,065,750 14,319,946 90,671 197,431
Furniture Fbeures 24,598,175 - 25,938 254,113 2,553,071 2,65.009
Computer 29,368,055 - 93,818 30,256,673 170717 23,580
Total (&) 14,13,28,3T1 - 83,84, 120 14,79,10,651 58357218 AT, 1519
Tetal (B) - . 5 g »
TOTAL[ A+B] 14,15.26,37] - 63.80,040 14 79.06,41 1 5,35.62,153 £.87,15,191
PREVIOLS YEAR 13,54,62,237 - 50.64,134 14,15,26,371 5,87,15,191 697,268,590




NOTE 11 INVESTMENTS - Now Corrent

Investmenis-shares quoted
Investments-Equity shares Unguoted

NOTE 12 INVENTORIES

Taken 35 valued and certified by the management }

{a) Storas & spares parts
{h] Loose tools
[c] Stock In trade
Raw materials
Inventories transit
Work in progress
NOTE 13 TRADE RECFIVARLES
{Unsecured considered Good)
@. Exceeding Six months
Censidered Good 2,83,06,811
Congidered Doubtful -
Less: Provision =
b. Others
Considered Good §,39,37,981
Considered Doubtful -
Less: provision =

NOTE 14 CASH & BANK BALANCES
\a} Cash on hand
(&} Cheques In hand
{¢] Bank balances
With schedule banks
In current account
In £.4.r. account

NOTE 15 §hort ierm Loans and advangey

Advances Racoverable

Advance Against Raw Materlal

Loans and advances to staff & workers
Prepaid expenses

Balance with Exclse / Service Tax depts
TD5

Vat Refund

NOTE 16 QTHER CURRENT ASSETS
{Unsecured considered good)

Crther Deposits

56,647
5,521,501

1,009,148

37.12,580
18}18“

1,48,15,270

3,78,60,115

5,604,06,145

12,22.44.792

12,22,44,792

16,27,068

348,108
§5,00,000

B4,75,176

35,31,534
1,01,54,728
12,05,850
119,817
4,40.507
1,02,614
44,73,801

2,00,28,561

32,43,156

32,41,156

Aupees

Rupaey

2,33,78,237

£,48,25,732

Rupees

Rupesas

5e,647
6,52,301

709,148

34,567,510
14,105

1,10,15.375
248,15,000
5,45,23,290

518,335,220

2.33,73.237

6,48,25,732

8.82,03,060

30,665,323

31}5?13“5
30,73,224

92,97,353

37,773,686
2,55,06,181
9,38,360
85,139
1.77.601
15,771
21,652815

3,26,69,613

38,383,814

38,309,814




TPI India Limited

NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED

NOTE 17
Sales Gross
Less: Excise
Salas Traged
Jobk Wark

NOTE 13 OTHER INCOME

Intorest income-gross
Dividend
Others Miscellaneous receipts

NOTE 19 MATERIAL INPUT
Opening stock of raw materials
Add: Purchases

Freight imward

Less: Clasing stark of raw materlals
Purchase Traded

NOTE

INF RES
QPENING STOCK :
Finished Goods
Waork In progress
Traded Goods

CLOSING STOCK
Finished Goods
Work In progress
Traded Goods

(INCREASE} DECREASE IN STOCK
NOTE 21

Labour charges
Consumption of stores
Power & fusl
Water charges
Factory Insurance
Repairs and maintznance
(A} Building
{B] Plant & machinary

F¥,75,20.278
3,87,2),844

OPFERATIONAL EXPENSES

31-03-16

33,87,97.434
56,97,601
45,78,711

34,50,73,746

3.46,588
5150
25,88,715

33,20,437

1,10,15,375
24,96,54, 7012
14,834,071

26,21,51,148
1,48,15,370

24,73,35,878

53,71,38]

25,27,00,259

3,45,23,250

3,45,23,250

3,78,60,115

3,78,60,115

(33,36,825)

2.24,67.364
51,13, 712
1,23,55,877
3,165,713
4,41, 586

73,626
6,83,269

4,14,52,147

31 st March 2016

Rupess

25,01,78 408
2,404,87,052

Rupeoes

Hupees

31-03-1%

22,56,91,356
5,10.25,847
3,20,94,553

31,88,14.356

2,11,552
2,512
73,744

2,93,809

85,24,560
16,7647 415
16.51,854

17,78,13,830
1,10,15,375

16.68,08,433

5,76,65,908

22.44,74,360

2,91,73,390

2,91,73,390

3,45,23,290

3.45,23,2390

(53,49,500)

2,25,68,353
a5,44,220
1,24,99,718
5,54,8060
3,43,544

44,058
E.09,564

4,03,65,227




NOTE 2} EMFPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries 1,20,55,038
Workmen & staff welfare expenses 8,566,500
Contribution e provident fund and other funds
Provident Fund 185163
1,31,06,701
MNOTE 23 ADMINISTRATIVE & SELLING EXFENSES
Printing and stationery 3,70,660
Telgphone 5,40,423
Paostage and Courier charges 78,633
Vehicle Expensas €,03,20%
Repsirs and malntenance of othare 161,740
Insurance ather 1,67,876
Rent 1,06,400
Rates and taxes 54,000
Packaging, forwarding charges 84,53,722
Legal and professional faes 11,13,133
Travelling expenses 14,15 444
Conveyange 3,48,643
Daonation i 20,058
Erpkerage & commission 10,50,956
Diractors sitting fees 43,000
Brokerage 4,289,000
Sales promction & presentation 1081603
Feas and subscription 37,988
Electricity 1,238,670
bank charges 1.03,290
Service tax 538,702
Computer Maintenade Expenses 70,865
Guarantee Commissian te Drector 300,000
Sungry expenses 10,592,269
Sharg, Listing and RTA Expneses 4,311,451
Auditors remunaration 242,000
2,00,38,740
NOTE 24 INTEREST & FINANCE CHARGES
[nterest to Kol Mercantile Co-op, Baok Lid 62, 75 469
interest to SIFL 271,114,243
Other financing charges 32,03,282
3.65,92,994

Rupees

Rupees

90,54,825

847,274

1,52,38%

1.00.94,492

3,32,439
4,19,544
3,16,039
7.16,302
189,130
51,070
1,06,400
55,806
53,83,392
12,561,763
1,589,874
347,623
31,558
582,068
64,000
503,420
4,357,827
26,708
1,038,580
1,20,798
170,604
€3,100
3.00,000
701,883
604,911
75,000

1,371,335 84%

60,81, 850
1,69,95,248
32,03, 470

268,081,568




NOTES 28 NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03-20168

1. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31-03--2016 30318
1.Contingent liabilitiez in respect of disputed suiticlaims pending 960.32 Lac 960.32 Lac
against the Company and Stafutory Penalties.
0% Preference Shares Dividend accrved 155,50 Lac 110.5% Lac
Guarantee given by the Company to PF Department Nil Nil

Z_In the Opinion of the Company the current assets, loans and advances  are appeoximately of the vatue stated, if realized in the ordinary
course of Business. Provision for known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of amount reasonably necessary,

3. Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors , seeured and unsecured - Loans & Advancea given and taken, are Subject o thelr confirmation,
adjustmenis and previsions if any. However the Management is confident of its recovery benee It iz shown in

Nede 13 of Awdited Accounts as considerad Good.

4. Mo provisico for Income Tax is made since there is no no taxable income for the carrent year. Mo provision is made for tax based on
MAT as the provizsion of MAT iz not applicable to sick industrial company in term of section 115JB read with explanetion {1} (vii).

01518 201415
5. Payments to Awdftors:
Andit Fees : 2, 40,000 60,000
Certification 2000 15,000
TOTAL Ra. 2,42,000 75,000

6. Payment to Directora for Guarantee Commission in respect of personal guaraniees
given for Loans and Credit facitities obtained by the Company

3,00,000 3,000,000
3,00,000 3,00,000
7 Expenditure in Foreign Currency
Travelling Expenses NIL NIL
8 Earnings in Foreign Currency NIL NIL
g Prior years Expenses includes:
Expenses Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Salary & Wages {Incentives,Exta Tine and P F 0.00 0.00
TOTAL EXFENSES 0.0 .00
Income

10 Accounting Policias

[a] The financial statements are prepared under the historicaf cost corwention Method, in accordance with appicable
accounting standards.

[blii} Fixed assets are stated at cost, nat of Cenvat, less accumulated depreciation. all cost including financing costs til
cemmencement of commerclal production, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustment arising from exchange
rate variations relating ta bamawing attibutabtle ta the o the fixed assets are capialized,

(i} Depreciation is charged in accordance with schedule |l of the Companies Act, 2013 on straight ine method.

[¢] imvestment are stated at cost,



{d} Inyentories

1 Raw matorial are stated at lower of cost or mealizable value,

2 Work in prograss is valued at material ost and conversion cost appropriate to their location.

3 Firshed goods are stated at cost or realizabla value whichever is kwer, coat includes material coat,
conversian and othver cost incurmed in bringing the Invantory at their present kecatlon and condition,

4 Storas & spares are stated at cost or maalizable valus whichaver 15 laga.

{#}[The provislon for tax ia based on the assassable profits of the company computed in accordance with the income tax adt,
1961.
{f) No provision has been mads for lsave ancashment as the Company has the Policy to avail samed leava only.
{g]Saies are exclusive of excise duty and Vat/sales tax. Sales is accounted on the removal of Finished goods
from Factory.
{h) GGratuity s pravided onthe basls of working done as per the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972
{iy Capital issus and prelimingry expensea ans amortized as per section 350 of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

() Capital subsidy recalved from Meharashtra Government [s credited to capital regerve accaunt,

{k) Defarred tax Is recognized subject to the congideration of prudence , on timing diffarances , belng the difference betwaan
taxable income and sccounting income that originate in one geriod and are capable of reversal in Yhe or more subsequent
periods. deferrad tax assets are not recognized on unabaorbad depraciation and earry forward of lossas unless there is
reasonable cartainty that suffickint future 1exable Income will e available against which such defamed tax assets can be
realized,

{13 An asset is teatad as impaired when the camying cost of assets excesds its racoverable value. An impaiment loss is
charged ta the Profit and Loss Account In the year in which en asset i identified a3 Impaired. The impairment loss recognized
in prior acoounting periods is raversed if there has been a change in the estimate of mcoverable smount,

{m) {i) Provisiona are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using o substantial degree of
sirmation, if
a) the company has a present obligation as a resvult of a past event,

¢} tha amaount of the cbiigation can be rgllably estimated.
{ii) Contingert Liabkities is diacloged in the case of
&) a prasent obligation arlsing from past event, when it is not probable that an oulflow of macwrcas
will b rquived to aettie the cbigation
b) & possibla obligation, unieaa the probability of outfiow of rescurcan 1a remote

{ili) Gontingant Assats are neither recognized, nor discloeed. Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are
reviewed at each Balance Sheeta Date.

11. The amount due to Micro, Small & Madium Entarprisaz as per the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Davelopment
[MSMED) Agt, 2006 12 furnished under the relevant head, on the bagis of informaticon available with / recaived by the
company regarding the status of Micro, Small & Medium Emterprizea to which the company owes a Sum gxoeeding rupeas
o lac for maore than 30 days is Nil, Previcus Year NIl Mo interest is provided in respect thereof

12, The accounts are prepared on "Going Concem basis”. the continuation of the company ss 3 ging concern |s depsndent
upon ths implementation of Modified Rehabilitation Scheme, avallability of adequate finance and future profitability of the
COMpPany.

13. Basad on concept of prudence *Daterred Tax Asset™ has not been recognized as there ks reasonatde uncertainty of
sufficient future taxable income since the Company has been declared as sick company Registersd with Board for Industrial
and Financkal Reconsinuction, ;



14.As the

requirements of Actou

applicable.

15. in terms of AS 18 "Related Party Disclosures” issued by The ICAI |, related party transactions are as follows:

16

17. The dividend payable of Rs. 31742%/-
184710/~ , for F.Y. 1997-93, and not deposited with Investors

company's

a. Parties whera control exists
Sanjay Enterprises
b. Cther related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:
Key Management Personnel & Relatives
A. C. Parekh- Executive Director
Avinash B. Parakh - cordinator

business activitics fall within single segment viz, flaxible packaging geods, the disclosure
nting Standard 17 segment reporting lasued by Inatitute of Chartered Accauntants of India is not

c. Nature of Transaction : 31.03.2016 31.03.2016
Key Management personne] & Relatives
& contrelling firm [Met]
) Bharat C. Parelh {payment of Guarantee Commission} 3,00,000 3,90,000
&) Avinash B. Parekh - Salaries 3,680,000 2.00,000
) Credit Balance in Sanjay Enterprise (Loan) - 25,00,000
Egrnings Per Share: 2015-16 201415
ja] Profit/Loss before ordinarylexceptions item & tay Rupees - §,4550,993.00 28.42,435
Less: Dividend Provision on Preference Shares Rupees - -
Less : Exoeplion Tem - =
[b] Profit/{Loss) after tax and exceptional items Ra.in lakhs - 1,4550,993.00 28424335
[¢] The weighed average number of Ordinary share Nos. 4,28,63,470 4,29,63,470
[d] The nominal value per Drdinary Share Rupees 1 1
(] earnings per share [ Basic and diluted J before exceptional itetn Rupees -0.51 .07
[f] carnings per share [ Basic and diluted | after exceptional item  Rupees -0.51 007

is comprising of Rs. 34342.80 for F. Y. 1995-96, Rs. 0837600 for F.Y. 190697 and Rs.
Education and Protection Fund Account. The same amount is lying with Baok

of Barods under dividend afe. no. 4326 and the Federal Bank Lid. under dividend a/c. no. 3884 & 4034. The management is in the process
of transferring the same to Investors Education apd Protection Fund account.

1B. The Company has been declared a5 Stek Industrial Company under SICA on'12th Dec. 2005, At the hearing held on 1.09.2010, BIFR

In termns of Direction of BIFR in the hearing held on 19th March, 2013, the Company has been directed to file Modified Draft
Rehabilitation Scheme (MDRS) for allotment of 300 Lac Equity Shares to SHOOM INVESTMENT AND FINANCE LIMITEL against the
Sanctioned Scheme 510 on 01.09.2010. MDRS has alresdy been filed with BIFR in Sept 2613 with cut off date 31.03.2013.

However no hearing has been scheduled for MDRS, by BIFR till dae, The Company is in the process of Revising and Amending its
MDRS with New Cut off Date of 31.03.2016

19 Capital Commitment a1 the end of the year Rs. Nil Lac (Rs.Nil Laca), [Advances paid Rs. Nil (Rs. Nil Lacs)

20 At the heering held on 01-09-2010 BIFR has agpraved the relief in respect of extension of repayment of existing Deferred

Sales Tax Liability of Rs. 2,47,97,881 /- along with accrued interest therson at the concessional rate 7% per anoum

over the period of Five years subject to consideration of the same by Sales Tax Depariment. Accordingly the application

is made with the concerned authority for the requisite approval to implement the telief sought and the same is

pending. However the interest of Rs. 120.65 (Rs. 102.29) Lacs upto 31-03-2016 has net been provided in the annexed

BECOUNts on the outstanding deferred sales tax amount. However it the Revised / Amended MDRS, the Company is seeking
relief for deferred payment over the period of Five years from the date of sanction of Scheme

21. The Asscascment of Sales Tax for the Period 1995-96 to 2003-04 has been completed and consequential additional demand
of Rs. 1,61,84,583/- ( covered under deferral scheme } of which the debit notes of Rs, 1,61,84,583/- has been mised to the

defeulting ¢
RIFR to adjust this liability against un-utilised deferral limit of Rs. 524.60 Lac and

Five years from the sanction of MDES

ustomers for the recovery. However under the Revised / Amended MDRS, the Company is seeking relief from
payment of the same to ba deferved for




22 The Company has madc an application to SIOOM INVESTMENT AND FINANCE LIMITED for reduction in interest rate
9% to 15% on their Loan of Rs. 1260 Lac from 01.04.2015. The proposal was made on 16th Feb., 2016 and js at arhvanced
stage. The Company is hopeful, the propesal will be accepted, Once the proposal is accepted, there will be a saving of Rs.
%8.00 Lac in the interest cost of financial year 2015-16, and the effect of the same will be taken in the cument financial year
2016-17.

23. Previous year™s figures have been rearranged and/or regrouped, reclassified wherever necessaty to make them comparable with those of
the current year.

Note: All Notes From Notes '1' to "23" have been signed by following:

AS PER. OUR ATTACHED REFORT OF FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EVEN DATE

Sdi-
FOR B. R. DALAL & CO, Bharat C. Parekh Managing Director
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Belf-

sdi- Ishan [, Selatka Mon-Executive Director

BHARAT DALAL '
Proprietor Sd/-
Firm Regn. No. 102024W Akshay Bhatt Independent Director
{ Digitally signed)

Sd/-

Sandeep Podar Independent Director

USA Dated 30th May, 2014 Mumbsai Dated 30th May, 2016



TPL INDIA UMITED
CIN : L28129MH1982PLC0216917
Regd. Office : Plot No. J-61, Additional MIDC, Murbad, District Thane

34" Annual General Meeting
Attendance Slip
{to be handed over at the Registration Counter)

DPId: — - - Falic No.: ---———aes

Client Md ; —---—--— No. of Shares Held ; ——----—

(Applicable for the investors holding shares in electronic forms)

| / We hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of he Company on Saturday,
17'" September, 2016 at 11,30 a.m. at Plot No. J-61, Additional MIDC, Murbad, District : Thane
423401.

Name of the Shareholders : 1)
And Joint Shareholders 2)
(in Block Letter) 3)
Address :

Wame of the Proxy

{to be filled only when Proxy attend the meeting)

Signature of the Proxy Signature of Shareholder / loint Shareholders

Note :
1. Please fill the Attendance Slip and hand it over at the Registered Counter at the venue,



34"™ Annual General Meeting
PROXY FORM MGT— 11

{Pursuant to section 105{6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19{3 of the Companies {Management
and Administraction ) Rules, 2014

CIN P L28129MH1982026517

Name of the Company : TPI India Limited _

Registered Office : Plot No, 81, Additional MIDC, Murbad District Thane 421401
Website : www Aplindia,in

Name of the Members

Registered Address:
Email ID;

Follg No. / Client ID
DP Id

{*Applicabie for the investor holding shares in etectrenic forms)

| / We , being the member{s) of equity shares of TPI Indla Limited, hereby appoint:
1] HName :
Address
Ermail Id
Signature

2] Name
Address
Emali Id

Signature

3] Name
Address
Emaii Id
Signature

As my / our proxy to attend and vote {on 2 Poll) for me / us on my / our behalf at the 34™
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Saturday, 17" day of September, 2016 at
11.30 am at Plot No. 61, Additional MIDC, Murbad, District Thane 421 401, and at any
adjiournment thereof, in respect of the resolution set out in the AGM Notice convening the
meeting as per indicated below

5r. | Resalutian Far Against
No.

1 | Adoption of Audited Flnancial Statement for the financial year
ended 31% March, 2016 and the Report of Directors’ and Auditor,
therapn

2 Beclaration of Dividend

3 | Re-appointment of Mr. Akshay D. Bhatt {00537101), who retire
by rotation and being eligible , offers himself for re-appointment
4 | Re-appointment of M/s B. R. Dalal & Co. (FRN 102024W) as
Auditor and fixing their remunertion

Signed this day of ~—--memeeee . 2016

Affix a Re./-
Revenys
Samp

Signatura of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)



Note;

a

b}

)

d)

e}

\
This Form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Dffice of the Company not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the
meeting. :
A Proxy need nat be a member of the Company
A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceedling fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights may appolnt a single person as Proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for
any other perscn or shareholder.
Please put a "X* in the appropriate column against the resolution indicated in the Box. #f you
leave the "For® or “Against” column blank against any or all the resolution, your proxy will
be entitled to vote in the manner as he / she things appropriate.
In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient,



